
      

AGENDA
NORCOM Governing Board

 December 13, 2024, 9:00 am
      

1. Call to Order   

 

2. Roll Call   

 

3. Open Communications from the Public   

 

4. Consent Agenda   

 

A. Governing Board Meeting Minutes October 11, 2024
 

B. AP Reports October & November 2024
 

5. For Briefing to Board   

 

A. November 19, 2024 Wind Storm Briefing 
 

6. For Board Decision   

 

A. 2025 Budget Approval - Resolution 218 Adoption of the 2025 Budget 
 

B. Appointment of Deputy City Manager Call to Board Chair, and Selection and appointment of
new Governing Board Vice-Chair

 

C. Strategic Plan Review, Direction and Approval 
 

7. Newsletter   

 

A. December IT & Operations Newsletters 
 

8. Executive Session
The Governing Board may hold an Executive Session pursuant to one or more of the following:
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency
enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency litigation or potential litigation to
which the agency, the governing body, or a member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a
party, when public knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial
consequence to the agency;
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of an employee; and
• RCW 42.30.110(1)(f) to receive and evaluate complaints brought against an employee.

  

 

9. Other Business- **NORCOM cordially invites the Governing Board to tour the updated
facility following this meeting. 

  

1 of 2 

  



 

10. Adjournment   

 

 

The next Governing Board meeting is scheduled for January 10, 2025.

2 of 2 

  



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: Governing Board Meeting Minutes October 11, 2024

Executive Summary:
The October 2024 Governing Board minutes are presented to the Board for review and consideration for
approval.

Background:
The minutes are routinely submitted to the Governing Board for review, edits, and approval.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
N/A 

Policy and Strategic Implications:
N/A 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends approval.

Staff Comments:
Nothing Additional 

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: No

Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No

Attachments
GB Meeting Minutes 2024 10 



Meeting Minutes 
                                NORCOM Governing Board

October 11, 2024

MEMBERS
Nathan McCommon City of Bellevue
Toni Call City of Bothell (Vice-Chair)
Kyle Kolling City of Clyde Hill
Julie Underwood City of Kirkland
Mike Harden City of Lake Forest Park
Jeff Sass City of Medina 
Dan Yourkoski City of Normandy Park 
Mike Bailey City of Snoqualmie
Brian Culp Fire District #27 (Chair)
Matt Cowan Shoreline/Northshore Fire Department

ABSENT
Chris Sutter     City of Mercer Island
Ben Lane Eastside/Woodinville/Duvall Fire & Rescue
Adrian Sheppard Redmond Fire Department
James Knisley Skykomish Fire District #50
Jay Wiseman Snoqualmie Pass Fire

NORCOM ATTORNEY 
Deanna Gregory Pacifica Law Group

NORCOM TREASURER 
Michael Olson City of Kirkland (Board Treasurer)

NORCOM STAFF
Bill Hamilton Executive Director
Katy Myers Deputy Director Administrative Services
Roky Louie Deputy Director Operations
Judy Cayton Human Resource Manager 
Marianne Deppen Finance Manager
Jeremy Henshaw Law Enforcement Liaison 
Cory James Fire Liaison        
Andrew Johnson Service Desk & Applications Supervisor 
Sean Goehner Systems Engineer 
Zeb Middleton Senior Systems Engineer
Maggie Johanson Administrative Assistant
Ben Webb Public Records & QA Specialist 
Chelsie Barcus Payroll & Accounting Specialist



Meeting Minutes 
                                NORCOM Governing Board

October 11, 2024

o Call to Order

Chief Brian Culp, Governing Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. The 
meeting was posted publicly and offered in a hybrid format, allowing the public to 
participate in person, telephonically, or by video remote access. 

o Roll Call

Chief Culp requested a roll call of present Governing Board members. Ben Webb, 
Public Records & QA Specialist, reported a quorum. 

o Open Communications from the Public

There were no requests for open communication from the public by email, phone or 
in person.

o Consent Agenda

Governing Board Meeting Minutes September 13, 2024

Accounts Payable Report September 2024

There was no discussion on any consent agenda items. 

Deputy City Manager McCommon made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda. Chief Sass seconded the motion. 

Motion carried.  

o Board Briefing 

September 18, 2024 Outage Briefing 

Director Hamilton introduced the topic of the outage on September 18, 2024, 
that occurred during routine maintenance causing significant disruption in 



Meeting Minutes 
                                NORCOM Governing Board

October 11, 2024
service. NORCOM staff worked to determine the root cause and 

implement steps to prevent this from occurring in the future. Deputy Director 
Myers provided a network outage incident overview to include a timeline of the 
outage, stating that the outage was treated as a possible cyber attack until it was 
determined that was not the cause. Deputy Director Louie described the 
notification process used in the outage and how staffing was handled, including 
how staff stayed late, did not take breaks, and that they called extra staff in to 
handle the workload. Deputy Director Louie explained the manual dispatch 
process, showing an example of the forms and boards used for manual dispatch, 
stating that knowing manual dispatch adds a resilience level to NORCOM that 
allows us to be ready in the event of any outage. Deputy Director Myers followed 
up with an after-action report of the outage highlighting what went well and 
areas where there is an opportunity for improvement, then opened the floor for 
questions.  

NORCOM Console Replacement and Facilities Refresh Update 

Deputy Director Myers introduced the console replacement update, stating the 
project is on schedule with a move-back date of November 13, 2024. Service Desk 
& Applications Supervisor Andrew Johnson provided a detailed overview of the 
completed activities, including moving the cables under the floor due to the new 
console configuration, which involved five vendors and cutting 30 three-inch 
holes in the flooring, along with a timeline of all the tasks completed during this 
period. Johnson stated that there will be a phone system upgrade on November 
13th, the day that our disptacher come back to Bellevue. Deputy Director Myers 
complimented the City of Bellevue, saying they have been a wonderful partner to 
work with during this project. 

o Other Business 

Director Hamilton shared that there was some Board member interest in the 
possibility of canceling the November Board meeting. Director Hamilton shared 
that from a staff perspective there were no ILA driven timelines nor critical topics 
for the November meeting. The Board discussed and canceled the November 8, 
2024, Governing Board Meeting. The next Governing Board meeting will be held 
on December 13, 2024. 
Director Hamilton stated that the Steering Committee would set up a meeting to 
review the Strategic Plan RFP and provide input. 
Director Hamilton noted that staff sincerely appreciates the new backup center 
and the Board's support of the decision to move to a larger area. 



Meeting Minutes 
                                NORCOM Governing Board

October 11, 2024

Director Hamilton reminded the Board that a new vice chair must be selected at the 
December meeting. Chief Culp will step down at the completion  
of the December 2024 meeting, and Deputy City Manager Call will move into the 
Chair position. 

o Adjournment

Chief Culp adjourned the meeting at 9:36.  

The next Governing Board meeting is scheduled for December 13, 2024. 

Approved by:

Chair

Attest:

Secretary



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: AP Reports October & November 2024

Executive Summary:
NORCOM staff is asking that the Board review and approve these reports through consent. This action
is routine in nature and the Finance Manager has reviewed all charges.

Background:
These are routine reports produced monthly for Board review.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
N/A 

Policy and Strategic Implications:
N/A 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends approval.

Staff Comments:
Nothing Additional 

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: Yes

Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No

Attachments
AP Reports 2024 10 
AP Reports 2024 11 



 

NORCOM 

ACTIVITY OCTOBER 1, 2024 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2024 

 

 
Accounts Payable, Payroll, Electronic and Manual Payments Totaling: $1,226,682.74 

 

 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the 
services rendered or the labor performed as described herein, that any advance payment is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual 
obligation and that the claim is a just, due and unpaid obligation again NORCOM, and that I am authorized 
to authenticate and certify said claim.  

 

 

 

Michael Olson, Treasurer       Date  

 

We, the undersigned NORCOM Board Members, do herby certify that claims in the amount detailed 
above are approved.  

 

 

Governing Board Chair         Date  

         

 

Governing Board Vice Chair        Date   

 

 

 

 



501- Operating For Period Ending October 31, 2024

2024 Budget October Activity 2024 Collected to Date % collected
Agency Revenue 15,191,029 - 15,190,847$   100%
Agency Reimbursements 200,000  15,885  180,251$    90%
Grants/Intergovernmental/Interest 285,000  2,348  113,298$    40%

Total 15,676,029 18,233  15,484,396  99%

Transfers In 1,600,000  - 675,000$   42%
Revenues + Transfers 17,276,029 18,233.30  16,159,396  94%

Expenses
2024 Budget October Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Salaries & Wages - Regular 9,176,291  307,766$    6,604,218$    72% 2,572,073   
Salaries & Wages - Overtime 433,954  29,368$    729,053$    168% (295,099)   
Professional Reimbursements 4,200  162$    3,392$    81% 808   
Medical 1,389,242  44,062$    1,025,551$    74% 363,691   
HSA Contributions 30,515  895$    21,022$    69% 9,493   
Dental 102,950  3,146$    73,851$    72% 29,099   
Vision 13,789  433$    9,956$    72% 3,834   
Long-Term Care 7,184  514$    6,196$    86% 988   
FSA Fees 2,955  100$    1,000$    34% 1,955   
Medicare 142,449  4,532$    98,770$    69% 43,680   
MEBT 580,026  20,411$    451,713$    78% 128,313   
PERS 975,516  31,194$    681,584$    70% 293,931   
Washington FMLA 22,412  696$    15,524$    69% 6,888   
Unemployment 101,920  939$    59,452$    58% 42,468   
Workers Comp 45,977  1,034$    22,887$    50% 23,090   

Total Personnel 13,029,380 445,252  9,804,168$    75% 3,225,212   

Advertising 22,500  1,548$    8,739$    39% 13,761   
Bank Fees 50  -$   -$  0% 50   
Cellular,Pager & Radio Svcs 27,332  2,748$    19,762$    72% 7,570   
Computer Hardware-Non Capital 13,028  -$   582$   4% 12,446   
Consumable Goods 17,560  751$   10,225$   58% 7,335   
Dues & Memberships 13,304  1,827$   12,322$   93% 982   
Equipment Leases 25,580  1,873$   19,838$   78% 5,742   
Facility Lease 801,874  -$   668,704$   83% 133,171   
Financial Audit 42,270  -$   -$  0% 42,270   
Hosted Services 228,023  19,684$    219,881$    96% 8,142   
HR Services 88,092  14,053$    98,536$    112% (10,444)   
Insurance 135,500  -$   135,354$   100% 146   
Legal Services 133,350  2,032$    36,266$    27% 97,084   
Local Travel/Training/ Mileage 6,900  1,212$    2,993$    43% 3,907   
Network Service 49,749  1,727$    23,870$    48% 25,879   
Office Furniture 15,575  -$   1,827$   12% 13,748   
Office Supplies 6,500  425$   3,739$   58% 2,761   
Operating Supplies 5,100  369$   2,885$   57% 2,215   
Parking Lease 31,200  4,804$   29,482$   94% 1,718   
Payroll Services 17,010  1,126$   13,278$   78% 3,732   
Postage 1,000  16$    421$    42% 579   
Printing 2,000  62$    1,719$    86% 281   
Professional Services 137,040  505$    10,206$    7% 126,834   
R&M - Network Equipment 442,892  97,912$    289,994$    65% 152,899   
R&M - Office Equipment 2,500  220$    3,124$    125% (624)   
R&M - Software Maintenance 989,438  128,849$    890,542$    90% 98,896   
Radio Site Lease 60,301  624$    25,670$    43% 34,631   
Recruitment Supplies 2,000  -$   523$   26% 1,477   
Small Tools & Minor Equipment 10,500  (299)$   3,910$   37% 6,590   
Software/Licensing 99,106  34,992$    97,780$    99% 1,326   
Telephone Services 40,180  2,855$    26,893$    67% 13,287   
Training/Conf Registrations 35,935  1,110$    4,137$    12% 31,798   
Training/Conf Registrations/ Travel 27,138  624$    12,254$    45% 14,884   
Transfers Out 1,553,945  -$   246,130$   16% 1,307,815   

Total Supplies & Services 5,084,473  321,647  2,921,586$    57% 2,162,887   

GRAND TOTAL 18,113,853 766,899  12,725,754$    70% 5,388,099   

502- Capital Projects
2024 Budget October Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Alpha Numeric Paging 913,423  -$   93,038$   10% 820,385   
Console Replacement Project 714,000  4,386$    309,890$    43% 404,110   
CAD Radio Interface 200,000  -$   3,023$   2% 196,978   
CAD to NICE 35,000  -$   -$  0% 35,000   

1,862,423  4,386  405,951  21.8% 1,456,472   

503- Equipment Replacement:
2024 Budget October Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Desktops/Laptops/Phones 30,850  -$   15,514$   50% 15,336   
Network Costs 75,000  -$   -$  0% 75,000   
Routers/Servers 131,379  -$   162,996$   124% (31,618)   
Switches & Access Points 33,250  -$   -$  0% 33,250   

270,479  -  178,510  66.0% 91,969   

505-E 911 Escrow
Revenues: 2024 Budget October Activity Collected to Date % collected
E-911 Escrow 1,600,000  - 1,320,151$   83%
Investment Interest -  -  24,427$   

1,600,000  - 1,344,578$   84%

Expenditures: 2024 Budget October Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance
Transfers Out 1,600,000  -$   675,000$   42% 925,000   



2024 Adopted 
Budget Actual

Percent of 
Budget

2024 Adopted 
Budget Actual

Percent of 
Budget

501 - Operating Fund 504 - Operating Expense Reserve
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 746,633                   743,633           2024 Beginning Fund Balance 160,751$              $160,751

Agency Revenue 15,191,029              15,190,847$     100.00% Investment Interest -$                      -             0.00%
Other Revenue 485,000                   293,549$          60.53% Other Revenue -$                      -             0.00%
Transfers In 1,600,000                675,000$          42.19% Transfers In 40,000$                -             0.00%

Revenue Collected 17,276,029              16,159,396       93.54% Revenue Collected 40,000                  -             0.00%

Total Resources 18,022,662              16,903,029       Total Resources 200,751                160,751     

Personnel Expenditures 12,928,930              9,804,168$       75.83%
Operating Expenditures 3,400,787                2,921,586$       85.91% Operating Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out 1,553,945                246,130$          15.84% Transfers Out -                        -             0.00%

Total Expenditures 17,883,662              12,971,884       72.53% Total Expenditures -                        -             0.00%

Available Fund Balance $139,000 3,931,145$       Available Fund Balance $200,751 $160,751

502 - Capital Projects Fund 505 - E-911 Escrow Trust
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 51,206                     $51,206 2024 Beginning Fund Balance $170,532 $170,532

Agency Revenue -                          $0 0.00% Operating Revenue 1,600,000             1,320,151$ 82.51%
Investment Interest -                          -                   0.00% Investment Interest -                        24,427       0.00%
Non-Operating Revenue -                          -                   0.00%
Transfers In 660,000                   -                   0.00% Revenue Collected 1,600,000             1,344,578  84.04%

Revenue Collected 660,000                   -                   0.00% Total Resources 1,770,532             1,515,110  
0

Total Resources 711,206                   51,206              Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out 1,600,000             675,000     42.19%

Expenditures 1,862,423                405,951$          21.80%
Transfers Out -                          -$                 0.00% Total Expenditures 1,600,000             675,000     42.19%

Total Expenditures 1,862,423                405,951            21.80% Available Fund Balance $170,532 $840,110

Available Fund Balance -$1,151,217 -$354,745 506 - Rate Stabilization Reserve
2024 Beginning Fund Balance $507,041 $507,041

503 - Equipment Replacement Reserve Investment Interest -                        -             0.00%
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 151,470                   $151,470 Non-Operating Revenue -                        -             0.00%

Investment Interest -                          -                   0.00% Transfers In 607,814                0.00%
Non-Operating Revenue -                          -                   0.00%
Transfers In 246,130                   -                   0.00% Revenue Collected 607,814                -             0.00%

Revenue Collected 246,130                   -                   0.00% Total Resources 1,114,855             507,041     

Total Resources 397,600                   151,470            Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out -                        -             0.00%

Expenditures 270,479                   178,510$          66.00%
Transfers Out -                          -                   0.00% Total Expenditures -                        -             0.00%

Total Expenditures 270,479                   178,510            66.00% Available Fund Balance $1,114,855 $507,041

Available Fund Balance $127,121 -$27,040

NORCOM Financial Summary
For Period Ending October 31, 2024



















 

NORCOM 

ACTIVITY NOVEMBER 1, 2024 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2024 

 

 
Accounts Payable, Payroll, Electronic and Manual Payments Totaling: $1,573,515.16 

 

 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the 
services rendered or the labor performed as described herein, that any advance payment is due and 
payable pursuant to a contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual 
obligation and that the claim is a just, due and unpaid obligation again NORCOM, and that I am authorized 
to authenticate and certify said claim.  

 

 

 

Michael Olson, Treasurer       Date  

 

We, the undersigned NORCOM Board Members, do herby certify that claims in the amount detailed 
above are approved.  

 

 

Governing Board Chair         Date  

         

 

Governing Board Vice Chair        Date   

 

 

 

 



501- Operating For Period Ending November 30, 2024

2024 Budget November Activity 2024 Collected to Date % collected
Agency Revenue 15,191,029 - 15,190,847$   100%
Agency Reimbursements 200,000  13,696  216,364$    108%
Grants/Intergovernmental/Interest 285,000  1,277  128,803$    45%

Total 15,676,029 14,973  15,536,014  99%

Transfers In 1,600,000  - 1,600,000$   100%
Revenues + Transfers 17,276,029 14,973.48  17,136,014  99%

Expenses
2024 Budget November Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Salaries & Wages - Regular 9,176,291  618,689$    7,538,024$    82% 1,638,267   
Salaries & Wages - Overtime 433,954  88,314$    845,298$    195% (411,344)   
Professional Reimbursements 4,200  323$    3,877$    92% 323   
Medical 1,389,242  49,878$    1,122,643$    81% 266,599   
HSA Contributions 30,515  980$    22,950$    75% 7,566   
Dental 102,950  3,548$    80,792$    78% 22,157   
Vision 13,789  487$    10,903$    79% 2,886   
Long-Term Care 7,184  28$    6,224$    87% 960   
FSA Fees 2,955  -$   1,000$   34% 1,955   
Medicare 142,449  9,585$    112,970$    79% 29,479   
MEBT 580,026  42,308$    514,809$    89% 65,217   
PERS 975,516  30,805$    728,655$    75% 246,861   
Washington FMLA 22,412  1,443$    17,675$    79% 4,737   
Unemployment 101,920  1,329$    61,575$    60% 40,345   
Workers Comp 45,977  2,171$    26,100$    57% 19,877   

Total Personnel 13,029,380 849,887  11,093,495$    85% 1,935,886   

Advertising 22,500  2,479$    11,414$    51% 11,086   
Bank Fees 50  -$   -$  0% 50   
Cellular,Pager & Radio Svcs 27,332  1,281$    21,044$    77% 6,288   
Computer Hardware-Non Capital 13,028  -$   582$   4% 12,446   
Consumable Goods 17,560  731$    10,956$    62% 6,604   
Dues & Memberships 13,304  -$   12,322$   93% 982   
Equipment Leases 25,580  1,873$    21,711$    85% 3,868   
Facility Lease 801,874  139,474$    808,178$    101% (6,303)   
Financial Audit 42,270  -$   -$  0% 42,270   
Hosted Services 228,023  1,023$    220,904$    97% 7,119   
HR Services 88,092  2,732$    101,268$    115% (13,176)   
Insurance 135,500  -$   135,354$   100% 146   
Legal Services 133,350  14,079$    50,344$    38% 83,006   
Local Travel/Training/ Mileage 6,900  3,739$    6,732$    98% 168   
Network Service 49,749  2,402$    26,272$    53% 23,477   
Office Furniture 15,575  586$    2,413$    15% 13,162   
Office Supplies 6,500  152$    3,891$    60% 2,609   
Operating Supplies 5,100  276$    3,161$    62% 1,939   
Parking Lease 31,200  2,149$    31,631$    101% (431)   
Payroll Services 17,010  1,124$    14,402$    85% 2,608   
Postage 1,000  146$    567$    57% 433   
Printing 2,000  1$    1,720$    86% 280   
Professional Services 137,040  459$    10,665$    8% 126,375   
R&M - Network Equipment 442,892  -$   289,994$   65% 152,899   
R&M - Office Equipment 2,500  -$   3,124$   125% (624)   
R&M - Software Maintenance 989,438  2,915$    893,457$    90% 95,981   
Radio Site Lease 60,301  624$    26,293$    44% 34,008   
Recruitment Supplies 2,000  -$   523$   26% 1,477   
Small Tools & Minor Equipment 10,500  466$   4,376$   42% 6,124   
Software/Licensing 99,106  11,433$    109,212$    110% (10,106)   
Telephone Services 40,180  3,221$    30,114$    75% 10,066   
Training/Conf Registrations 35,935  2,400$    6,537$    18% 29,398   
Training/Conf Registrations/ Travel 27,138  2,603$    14,857$    55% 12,281   
Transfers Out 1,553,945  -$   246,130$   16% 1,307,815   

Total Supplies & Services 5,084,473  198,367  3,120,149$    61% 1,964,324   

GRAND TOTAL 18,113,853 1,048,254  14,213,644$    78% 3,900,210   

502- Capital Projects
2024 Budget November Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Alpha Numeric Paging 913,423  860$    93,898$    10% 819,525   
Console Replacement Project 714,000  38,783$    348,674$    49% 365,327   
CAD Radio Interface 200,000  -$   3,023$   2% 196,978   
CAD to NICE 35,000  -$   -$  0% 35,000   

1,862,423  39,643  445,594  23.9% 1,416,829   

503- Equipment Replacement:
2024 Budget November Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance

Desktops/Laptops/Phones 30,850  -$   15,514$   50% 15,336   
Network Costs 75,000  -$   -$  0% 75,000   
Routers/Servers 131,379  -$   162,996$   124% (31,618)   
Switches & Access Points 33,250  -$   -$  0% 33,250   

270,479  -  178,510  66.0% 91,969   

505-E 911 Escrow
Revenues: 2024 Budget November Activity Collected to Date % collected
E-911 Escrow 1,600,000  - 1,320,151$   83%
Investment Interest -  -  28,583$   

1,600,000  - 1,348,735$   84%

Expenditures: 2024 Budget November Activity 2024 Spending to Date % used Remaining Balance
Transfers Out 1,600,000  -$   1,600,000$   100% -  



2024 Adopted 
Budget Actual

Percent of 
Budget

2024 Adopted 
Budget Actual

Percent of 
Budget

501 - Operating Fund 504 - Operating Expense Reserve
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 746,633                   743,633           2024 Beginning Fund Balance 160,751$              $160,751

Agency Revenue 15,191,029              15,190,847$     100.00% Investment Interest -$                      -             0.00%
Other Revenue 485,000                   345,167$          71.17% Other Revenue -$                      -             0.00%
Transfers In 1,600,000                1,600,000$       100.00% Transfers In 40,000$                40,000       100.00%

Revenue Collected 17,276,029              17,136,014       99.19% Revenue Collected 40,000                  40,000       100.00%

Total Resources 18,022,662              17,879,647       Total Resources 200,751                200,751     

Personnel Expenditures 12,928,930              11,093,495$     85.80%
Operating Expenditures 3,400,787                3,120,149$       91.75% Operating Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out 1,553,945                246,130$          15.84% Transfers Out -                        -             0.00%

Total Expenditures 17,883,662              14,459,774       80.85% Total Expenditures -                        -             0.00%

Available Fund Balance $139,000 3,419,874$       Available Fund Balance $200,751 $200,751

502 - Capital Projects Fund 505 - E-911 Escrow Trust
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 51,206                     $51,206 2024 Beginning Fund Balance $170,532 $170,532

Agency Revenue -                          $0 0.00% Operating Revenue 1,600,000             1,320,151$ 82.51%
Investment Interest -                          -                   0.00% Investment Interest -                        28,583       0.00%
Non-Operating Revenue -                          -                   0.00%
Transfers In 660,000                   660,000            100.00% Revenue Collected 1,600,000             1,348,735  84.30%

Revenue Collected 660,000                   660,000            100.00% Total Resources 1,770,532             1,519,267  
0

Total Resources 711,206                   711,206            Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out 1,600,000             1,600,000  100.00%

Expenditures 1,862,423                445,594$          23.93%
Transfers Out -                          -$                 0.00% Total Expenditures 1,600,000             1,600,000  100.00%

Total Expenditures 1,862,423                445,594            23.93% Available Fund Balance $170,532 -$80,733

Available Fund Balance -$1,151,217 $265,612 506 - Rate Stabilization Reserve
2024 Beginning Fund Balance $507,041 $507,041

503 - Equipment Replacement Reserve Investment Interest -                        -             0.00%
2024 Beginning Fund Balance 151,470                   $151,470 Non-Operating Revenue -                        -             0.00%

Investment Interest -                          -                   0.00% Transfers In 607,814                607,814     100.00%
Non-Operating Revenue -                          -                   0.00%
Transfers In 246,130                   246,130            100.00% Revenue Collected 607,814                607,814     100.00%

Revenue Collected 246,130                   246,130            100.00% Total Resources 1,114,855             1,114,855  

Total Resources 397,600                   397,600            Expenditures -                        -             0.00%
Transfers Out -                        -             0.00%

Expenditures 270,479                   178,510$          66.00%
Transfers Out -                          -                   0.00% Total Expenditures -                        -             0.00%

Total Expenditures 270,479                   178,510            66.00% Available Fund Balance $1,114,855 $1,114,855

Available Fund Balance $127,121 $219,090

NORCOM Financial Summary
For Period Ending November 30, 2024























MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: November 19, 2024 Wind Storm Briefing 

Executive Summary:
On November 19th, our service area experienced a significant windstorm that impacted the majority of
King County. The storm caused considerable damage and loss of life, leaving over 300,000 people
without power, some for several days. The increase in NORCOM call volume was substantial.

For example, on average, NORCOM manages approximately 780 calls a day, of which our combined
Police agencies respond to approximately 350 calls, and our combined Fire agencies respond to
approximately 211 calls per day.  During the storm, NORCOM managed 747 calls within an hour and
approximately 3500 calls in 24 hours.  Our police agencies responded to 611 calls, and our Fire agencies
responded to approximately 1732.  Although all were very busy, NORCOM had pre-planned for the
storm and staffed accordingly.  The collaboration and cooperation among all first responders was
outstanding, many of whom worked through the storm despite being personally impacted in various
ways.    

Background:
NORCOM has procedures to handle significant events and periods of high activity. These procedures
include a staffing plan, a special events phone queue, putting fire departments on resource emergency
and reduced response, and putting police agencies on resource emergency and a level one delay.
 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
At the October Governing Board Meeting, Medina Police Chief Jeff Sass recommended that NORCOM
develop a resource emergency plan for police agencies to complement the existing fire procedures. 
Procedures were developed, put into policy, and successfully utilized on the day of the windstorm.
 

Policy and Strategic Implications:
There are no further policy or strategic implications at this time. NORCOM’s existing policies were
sufficient to handle the event.
 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
This report is informational in nature. Staff has no additional recommendations at this time.

Staff Comments:
Staff has no additional comments.
 



Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: No

Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: 2025 Budget Approval - Resolution 218 Adoption of the 2025 Budget 

Executive Summary:
The Board is being asked to adopt the NORCOM 2025 budget. There are several key features of this
budget that include:
Overall, user fees will increase by 5.2% 

1.5% of the fee increase is directed to the Operating fund. Significant changes approved for 2025
impacting the operating fund are: 

Increase of two FTE- one Training Telecommunicator and one IT employee
The NORCOM Strategic Plan Project

 2.7% of the fee increase is directed towards the Capital Project fund. Projects receiving funding in
2025 include: 

Continuity of Operations Project- complete server separation and migration to an
advanced data backup and recovery system.
Call Taking Protocol Systems- part of NORCOM’s quality assurance program overhaul.
Internet Service Resiliency- implement improvements with current internet
service providers and include a non-terrestrial, tertiary provider.

1% of the fee increase is directed towards the Equipment Replacement Fund. Total budgeted
equipment expenditures in 2025 is $160,000.

Background:
NORCOM staff and the Finance Committee have worked throughout the year to create this budget,
which puts forth the financial framework for continued success in 2025 The Governing Board has
provided input and direction for consideration to the Finance Committee and NORCOM Management. On
July 12 th, the Governing Board approved this budget for submission to its agencies.
 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:

Policy and Strategic Implications:
Adopting the 2025 budget brings several strategic benefits, aligning with NORCOM’s long term goals of
operational excellence, security and service quality.

The addition of a telecommunicator position will enhance NORCOM’s ability to onboard and develop new
hires. The new IT position addresses a vital need for bench strength in network security and resilience.

The projects funded in this budget further advance NORCOM’s mission: 

Call Taking Protocol System:  this initiative supports the evaluation and adjustments of NORCOM’s
call taking processes and implementing a supportive, assistive protocol system that will decrease
training time and enhance the accuracy and consistency of call handling.



Continuity of Operations: by implementing advanced server separation and a robust data backup
and recovery system, NORCOM ensures greater disaster and failover recovery capabilities and
improved operational responses to during failure operations.
Internet Service Resiliency: Improvements to existing internet service providers and the addition of
a non-terrestrial tertiary provider ensure uninterrupted connectivity, a cornerstone for reliable
emergency response.

Long-term, these strategic investments position NORCOM to meet evolving public safety demands.   
 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff recommends approval to adopt the 2025 budget.
 

Staff Comments:
NORCOM Staff and Finance Committee will be happy to take questions pertaining to this budget.
 

Options

Risks
Adoption of the budget is required per the ILA. Failure to adopt forces NORCOM to begin operations in
2025 without a financial framework.
 

Finance Committee Review: Yes
The finance committee has been advised of the 2025 budget recommendation and
offered guidance, which has been incorporated.
  
Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No

Attachments
Adoption of the 2025 Budget - Resolution 218 
2025 Budget Document 
R218 Adoption of the 2025 Budget 



Resolution 218- Adopting the
2025 Budget



Budget Process
February: Prior

Year Budget
Reconciliation

March: Budget
Policy Adoption

June:
Preliminary

Budget
Presentations

July: Board
Approves Fees

December:
Final Budget

Adoption



Key Budget Items

• Overall fee increase of 5.2%
• Increase NORCOM FTE by 2- 1 Telecommunicator and 1 IT
• Provides funding for a Strategic Plan Project
• Budget includes funding for 3 new Capital Projects

• Continuity of Operations
• Call Taking Protocol Systems
• Internet Service Resilience



2025 Fund Summary
NORCOM is seeking Board approval to
approve the 2025 Budget



NORTH EAST KING COUNTY REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY

COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

2025 ADOPTED BUDGET

DECEMBER 13, 2024
PHONE: (425) 577-5700 • www.norcom.org   • PO BOX 50911, BELLEVUE, WA 98015-0911



Contents
MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR..........................................................................................................2

AGENCY OVERVIEW..............................................................................................................................................3

MISSION, VISION AND VALUES STATEMENT................................................................................................................................ 3
LEGAL ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNANCE...................................................................................................................................3
ORGANIZATION CHART........................................................................................................................................................ 5

BUDGET OVERVIEW..............................................................................................................................................6

BUDGET PLANNING............................................................................................................................................................ 6
BUDGET OBJECTIVES...........................................................................................................................................................6
FEE SMOOTHING, FUND SEPARATION, AND LONG-TERM PLANNING.................................................................................................... 8
FEE SMOOTHING PROJECTIONS...............................................................................................................................................9

2025 FUND SUMMARY ¹......................................................................................................................................10

2025 RESOURCES................................................................................................................................................ 10

TRANSFERS....................................................................................................................................................................13

OPERATING FUND.............................................................................................................................................. 13

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 13

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND....................................................................................................................................18

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 18
FUND DETAIL.................................................................................................................................................................18
FUNDING......................................................................................................................................................................19
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND SPENDING FORECAST...........................................................................................................................20

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT & RESERVE FUND....................................................................................................21

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 21
2025 FUND EXPENSES.....................................................................................................................................................21
PROJECTED ER&R FUND FORECAST......................................................................................................................................22

OPERATING EXPENSE RESERVE........................................................................................................................... 23

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 23

E-911 ESCROW FUND..........................................................................................................................................23

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 23
FUND FORECASTS............................................................................................................................................................ 23

RATE STABILIZATION FUND.................................................................................................................................24

FUND OVERVIEW AND DRIVERS............................................................................................................................................ 24



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Message from the Executive Director

I welcome you to the 2025 budget on behalf of the highly skilled and dedicated team that defines
NORCOM.

The 2025 budget recognizes that strategic investments and a long-term vision drive sustained
organizational success and service excellence. The Governing Board's ongoing collaborative support,
vision, direction, and the strategic allocation of correlating resources are pivotal to this success.

While the budget continues to provide for maintaining highly effective service delivery, the 2025 budget
focuses on a sustainable, secure, predictable, and increasingly resilient path forward for NORCOM. This
budget reflects a sound technological and human capital infrastructure investment while remaining
fiscally responsible.

For example, the 2025 budget provides increased network security, improved employee training
capabilities, competitive employee compensation, new mechanisms for improved employee mental
health wellness, disaster recovery improvements, and a comprehensive strategic plan to help guide
future decision-making.

By embracing long-term, adaptable, value-driven financial, technical, and operational planning, we best
position ourselves to navigate ever-increasing complexity and emerging growth opportunities to support
long-term sustainable excellence.

Respectfully,

William Hamilton

Executive Director

Our mission is to be a caring and trusted Servant to those who Need Help and those who provide help.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Agency Overview
Mission, Vision and Values Statement

The Core Mission of the North East King County Regional Communication Agency (NORCOM) is to be a
caring and trusted servant to those who need help and those who provide help.

 The Core Values include:

• Deliver Excellent Service to the Public.
• Provide a Good Value: effective service while using resources wisely. Be Efficient.
• Customer Service: Provide the best possible service to the public, to agencies, and other public

safety service providers. Be Responsive.
• Participatory Governance: We give all participating agencies and agency members a voice in

operating decisions of the agency. Work Together.
• Promote Interagency Collaboration and Interoperability: We will be good neighbors. Be Open.
• Consider the future: We will continuously adapt to the needs of the public and customer needs.

Be Innovative.

Legal Organization and Governance

The North East King County Regional Public Safety Communications Agency (NORCOM) officially organized
on November 7, 2007 as a Washington not-for-profit corporation created by in Interlocal Agreement
among the City of Bellevue, City of Bothell, City of Clyde Hill, City of Kirkland, City of Lake Forest Park, City
of Medina, City of Mercer Island, City of Snoqualmie, King County Fire District #45 (Duvall), Eastside Fire
and Rescue, King County Fire District #27 (Fall City), Northshore Fire, Shoreline Fire, King and Kittitas
Counties Fire District #51 (Snoqualmie Pass Fire and Rescue) and Woodinville Fire and Life, as authorized
by the Interlocal Cooperation Act under Chapters 24.06 and 39.34 of the Revised Code of Washington.

On July 1, 2009, NORCOM answered its first 911 call as a consolidated dispatch agency.

In 2025, NORCOM is comprised of 8 police agencies and 14 fire agencies. The total population served by
these agencies is 781,200 residents, which does not include commuters and visitors to the area every day.
The service area is approximately 660 square miles, situated primarily in the northern and eastern
portions of King County. NORCOM's northern border stretches into parts of Snohomish County, with
services provided by Shoreline and Bothell Fire departments. The most southern portion of NORCOM's
service area is the City of Normandy Park, located in the southwest part of King County. The most easterly
part of NORCOM's service area stretches into parts of Kittitas County.

NORCOM is governed by the Governing Board, comprised of the Chief Executive Officer of each Principal
Agency or their designee.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Principal members of the Governing Board are:

Agency Principal Member Title
City of Bellevue Nathan McCommon Deputy City Manager
City of Bothell Toni Call Deputy City Manager
City of Clyde Hill Kyle Kolling Police Chief
Duvall Fire District #45 Ben Lane Fire Chief
Eastside Fire and Rescue Ben Lane Fire Chief
Fall City Fire District #27 Brian Culp Fire Chief
City of Kirkland Julie Underwood Deputy City Manager
City of Lake Forest Park Mike Harden Police Chief
City of Medina Jeff Sass Police Chief
City of Mercer Island Chris Sutter Police Chief
City of Normandy Park Dan Yourkoski Police Chief
Northshore Fire District Matt Cowan Fire Chief
City of Redmond Adrian Sheppard Fire Chief
Shoreline Fire Department Matt Cowan Fire Chief
Skykomish Fire District #50 James Knisley Fire Chief
City of Snoqualmie Mike Bailey Fire Chief
Snoqualmie Pass Fire District Jay Wiseman Fire Chief
Woodinville Fire and Life Ben Lane Fire Chief

To assist the board with fiscal duties and responsibilities, the Board created a Finance Committee. The
finance committee is an advisory committee, comprising of employees of NORCOM's principals and
subscribers. Chief Officers or designees of principals and subscribers may appoint an employee to the
Committee for participation.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document Page 6

Organization Chart



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Budget Overview
The NORCOM budget process is part of an overall policy framework that guides the services and functions
of NORCOM. The budget serves a vital role in that policy framework by allocating financial resources to
support the Core Values and Goals set by NORCOM leadership and the Governing Board. NORCOM
utilizes an accrual basis of budgeting, identical to its basis of accounting.

Developing the annual budget is an ongoing process that begins as soon as the final budget is approved
for the prior year.

Budget Planning

Budget planning begins with the creation of a budget schedule presented to the NORCOM leadership
team. Once finalized, the schedule is presented to the Board for approval. Budget templates are sent to
the leadership team to capture budget requests for the upcoming fiscal year. The requests are reviewed
and compiled into a comprehensive budget document reviewed by the NORCOM leadership team.

After the leadership team has reviewed the proposed budget, it is presented to the Finance Committee
for feedback and approval. The Finance Committee is an advisory committee, comprising employees of
NORCOM's principals and subscribers. Chief Officers or designees of principals and subscribers may
appoint an employee for a one-year term.

Comments from the Finance Committee are considered and incorporated into the proposed budget. The
updated budget proposal is then presented to the Governing Board. The general public may provide input
during Governing Board meetings under the public comment agenda items. Feedback is incorporated into
a final budget document for their approval.

Below are the Agency's budget action dates for the 2025 budget creation.

Date Action
March 8 Governing Board approves budget policy for the fiscal year 2025
July 12 Governing Board approves 2025 NORCOM Operating Budget
September 15 Participating Agencies advised of budget and user fees
December 13 Governing Board adopts 2025 NORCOM Budget

Budget Objectives

NORCOM strives to provide a financial base sufficient to sustain high-quality emergency communication
services to the public and its customers. This base includes maintaining the ability to withstand local and
regional economic hardships sustained by our participating agencies.

As fiscal conditions and circumstances shift and operating needs change, continually achieving these
policies may not be practical or always desirable. Therefore, these policies are intended to guide, not
govern, financial decision making, and may not be fully achieved within any budget period.

Key budget policies that drove the development of the 2025 budget include:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Operating Policies:

• NORCOM defines a balanced budget as current annual revenues (including fund balances) equal
to or greater than current annual expenditures.

• The operating budget is NORCOM's comprehensive financial plan which provides for the level of
services prescribed by the Participating Agencies, including additional services or new programs
as approved in subsequent years. A new budget will be adopted every year as a result of a
comprehensive process incorporating any newly approved programs, inflationary increases, and
other expenses. NORCOM Leadership will analyze new programs before they are presented to the
Governing Board for their analysis and, if approved, incorporated into the budget. No “one-time”
expenses will be carried forward into subsequent budgets without specific authority.

• All current operating expenditures will be paid from current revenues and cash carried over from
the prior year. Current revenues and operating expenditures will be reviewed monthly during the
year.

Amendment/Adjustment Policies:

• All supplemental appropriations for programs requested after the original budget is adopted will
only be approved by the Governing Board after consideration of the availability of revenues.

Revenue Policies:

• "Other" Revenues shall be realistically estimated and based upon the most recent information
available.

• NORCOM follows a vigorous policy of collecting revenues.
• NORCOM seeks to avoid dependence on temporary or unstable revenues to fund ongoing mission-

critical services.

Expenditure Policies:

• The NORCOM budget provides a sustainable service level for the employees' well-being and
emergency service providers' safety.

• Expenditures approved by the Governing Board in the annual budget define NORCOM's spending
limits for the upcoming year. In addition to legal requirements, NORCOM will maintain an
operating philosophy of cost control and responsible financial management.

• Emphasis is placed on improving individual and workgroup productivity rather than adding to the
workforce. NORCOM invests in technology and other efficiency tools to maximize productivity.

Capital Projects and Equipment Replacement

• NORCOM maintains all its assets at an acceptable level to protect capital investment and minimize
future maintenance and replacement costs.

• NORCOM analyses equipment replacement and maintenance needs, using a cash flow method.
The Capital Projects and Equipment Repair and Replacement schedules have been extended to a
ten-year projection.

• Equipment Replacement is fully funded according to the cash flow schedule to minimize large
increases in User Fees from year to year.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Operating Reserves and Contingency:
• Per section 12h of the ILA, each budget year the Governing Board shall set the Operating Expense

Reserve at a level that ensures funds are on hand to reasonably address unforeseen operating
contingencies. NORCOM's goal is to maintain the Operating Expense Reserve at a level equal to 5-
10% of the total Operating Budget.

• To determine Operating Expense Reserve funding, the Governing Board defines the Operating
Budget as the operating fund expenses less salaries, benefits, and one-time expenses.

• The Rate Stabilization Fund shall not exceed 10% of current Operating Fund Revenues. If it is
determined that funds will be used to offset the transition to higher rates or fund one-time
expenditures the designated amount shall be applied to the overall budget prior to calculating
assessments.

• All expenditures drawn from reserve accounts shall require prior Board approval unless previously
authorized for expenditure in the annual budget.

Debt Service:
• NORCOM does not have the power to issue obligations or to incur debt. If capital funding is

needed for facilities, technology, or equipment, one or more Principal Agencies may issue debt to
provide NORCOM's needs.
To date, not participating agency has issued debt on NORCOM's behalf.

Fee Smoothing, Fund Separation, and Long-Term Planning

In collaboration with the Finance Committee, NORCOM has established a smoothing mechanism that
gives more predictability in rate increases year over year. The development process is deliberative and has
driven a shift in this year's budget approach.

The Board historically addressed the budget with an annual focus. Long-term projects and costly expected
expenditures outside the next budget year were not eloquently integrated into the budget planning. As a
result, fee rates could fluctuate wildly.

The smoothing concept identifies anticipated operating revenues, expenditures, equipment replacement
and repair (ER&R), and proposed non-capital and capital expenses for the upcoming ten years. The costs
to support the Operating, ER&R and Capital Project funds are now differentiated, and through the budget
planning process, the Board may set rate increases against each fund.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Fee Smoothing Projections



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

2025 Fund Summary ¹

¹ The 2025 estimated beginning and ending fund balance may change after carry forward impacts of the 2023 budget activities

2025 Resources
Resources are comprised of estimated beginning fund balances and revenues. Revenues include fees
collected from Participating Agencies, E-911 Revenue, Miscellaneous Revenues, and Interest Earnings.

• Fees from Participating Agencies: the primary source of NORCOM's revenue is assessments
issued to participating agencies. Fees are calculated using a Functional Distribution Model
implemented in 2017. The model uses calls for service as a basis for allocating fees to agencies by
function.  An annual average of billable calls for services is determined based on a number of calls
for service over a two-hear historical call calculation period.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

The calculation is as follows:

1. Calculate NORCOM's FTE Percentage based on the following functions:
b. Call Receiver FTE
c. Police Dispatch FTE

d. Police Radio FTE
e. Fire Dispatch FTE

3. Calculate Agency Call receiver Cost: Call Receiver FTE % x (Agency CFS / Total CFS)
4. Calculate Police Dispatch Contribution: Police  Dispatch FTE % x (Agency CFS / Total Police

CFS)
5. Calculate Police Data Radio Contribution: Police Data FTE % x (Agency CFS / Total Police CFS)
6. Calculate Fire/EMS Dispatch Contribution: FD Dispatch FTE % x (Agency CFS / Total Fire CFS)

Percentages are applied to the current approved budget, less revenues from other sources.

Additional resources in 2025:
• E-911 Revenue: excise tax revenues collected by King County and distributed to NORCOM.

NORCOM receives these revenues in its E-911 Escrow fund and transfers funds to its operating
fund. In 2025, NORCOM’s distributions are planned to be consistent to the prior years at
$1,500,000.

• King County EMS Levy Grant: King County Emergency Medical Services grants NORCOM funds
through its Emergency Medical Dispatch program.  Funds are used for employee training, and
costs incurred to improve medical dispatch. 2025 is the last year of the County’s EMS Levy.
NORCOM is awarded $250,000 in funds for 2025, consistent to the prior year’s award.

• Miscellaneous revenues: NORCOM collects funds to reimburse software purchased and hosted
for several agencies. NORCOM also has service contracts in which IT employees perform services
to various principal agencies and charge hourly rates for the time worked on the contracts.
Budgeted miscellaneous revenues in 2025 is expected to be consistent to 2024.

• Beginning Fund Balance: incorporating a beginning Operating Fund balance provides the
opportunity to impact fees. This balance may be included in NORCOM's user fee calculations,
offsetting the total costs passed to agencies through fees.
Previously, NORCOM adopted break-even budgets and would estimate a beginning balance of $0
in its operating fund. Should carryforward funds from the prior budget year be identified, these
funds are generally transferred to other funds, or used to cover necessary expenses identified
after budget adoption.

o In 2024, NORCOM broke tradition and left the carryforward balance in the operating fund.
The Board supported the use of these funds to reduce 2024 user fees

o NORCOM continued this practice in 2025 budget planning. NORCOM estimated beginning
fund balance resources of $745,000, largely from 2023 budget vacancy savings, and
unbudgeted revenues collected in 2023. NORCOM’s Governing Board approved the use
of $400,000 of the estimated balance to offset fee increases in 2025. The remaining
$345,000 will be saved for future fee smoothing, due the addition of ongoing personnel
costs approved in the 2025 budget, and the anticipation of large activity in the Capital and
Equipment funds in the upcoming three years.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document Page 13

Through the functional distribution methodology, 2025 participation fees are:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Transfers

Transfers are accounted for to accurately reflect each fund's resources and expenditures while
considering transfer activity between funds.

Transfers include the full amount of anticipated E-911 Revenue from the Escrow Fund into the Operating
Fund, leaving an E911 Escrow balance of $140,517.

Operating Fund
Fund Overview and Drivers

The Operating Fund supports operating costs. All current operating expenditures are paid by collecting
participant fees, agency reimbursements, and regular grants- such as the King County EMS Performance
program.

NORCOM continues to strive to develop a lean budget for supplies and services. Categories outside of
NORCOM’s discretion drive many increases.

Significant operating expenditures include personnel costs, facility leases, and technology costs. Key
drivers impacting the 2025 budget are:

Personnel

In 2025, the Governing Board approved increases to staffing in the IT and Operations departments.

In the IT department, Network & Security oversight is a critical function of NORCOM’s IT Department. It is
imperative to have knowledgeable support in these areas to continue NORCOM’s level of standards of
high uptime. Current support for this area is reliant on one position. As a result, NORCOM has called in
this employee for assistance during his vacations, or sick time- a practice NORCOM desires to move away
from. The newly approved position also provides preparation for employee retirement expected in the
near future.

Additionally, NORCOM assessed a need to increase its telecommunicator staffing to 66.
Telecommunicator staffing levels at NORCOM have traditionally solely based on operating needs, or the
staff needed to work the dispatch floor to meet minimum standards. With actual staffing levels
experiencing natural ebbs and flows, training new hires is a constant requirement of NORCOM operating
workload- with key responsibilities of the training program placed on the Training Coordinator – a member
of the NORCOM Supervisors workgroup.

The new training position will assist with the training program, which at times represents a workload that
exceeded NORCOM’s current dedicated resources. Additionally, updates to training certification
requirements for Telecommunicators to be implemented in the future represent increased workload for
the department.  NORCOM also believes this position will provide a more desirable schedule option for its
telecommunicator group- which would increase morale and increase retention of more senior
telecommunicators. Lastly, this position may work as a promotional pipeline for its supervisor group. It
has been a goal of NORCOM to find non-monetary methods to increase interest of current
Telecommunicators to promote to its supervisor group, so this position would be a step to achieve this
goal.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

A historical overview of NORCOM's budgeted FTE is summarized below:

In addition to the change in staffing, other drivers led to the increase in personnel costs:
• The contract between NORCOM and the Telecommunicator Guild is effective through December

31, 2025, and established a 6% salary increase for represented employees.
• In 2024, NORCOM ratified a new contract with the Supervisor group for the periods January 1,

2025 through December 31, 2027. The contract established a 6% increase for its represented
employees.

• Administrative staff have been approved to receive a 5% COLA.
• As an Associated Cities of Washington (AWC) Employee Benefit Trust member, NORCOM provides

employees with medical, dental, and vision insurance plan options. NORCOM pays 100% of
employee coverage and 80% of employee dependents. Based on the new rates published by the
AWC, NORCOM budgeted a 6% increase in medical plans.

Facility Leases



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

• City Hall Lease: NORCOM’s lease for its main operating facility located in Bellevue City Hall is
contracted to increase its monthly rates based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI). Inflation rates
have remained high, and NORCOM anticipated a 5% increase to 2025 lease fees.

• Other leases: Other leases paid by NORCOM include an annual lease payment to the City of
Redmond for its back-up center site, and radio site leases paid to King County. All budgets for
these leases incorporate an increase in the annual payment amounts.

Technology

• Software Maintenance: NORCOM's largest non-personnel related category of expenditures. The
annual budget for NORCOM’s CAD system alone represents 17.8% of NORCOM total non-
personnel operating expenses. While the 2025 budget for software maintenance does not expand
the total software purchases, NORCOM anticipates general vendor increases for the year, and the
overall budget for this category increased by $85,000.

• Hosted Services: NORCOM pays cloud hosting fees for RAADAR and CAD Lite, website hosting
and NORCOM’s Cybersecurity services. The Cybersecurity as a service contract was new to
NORCOM in 2024, and NORCOM initially elected a single-year contract option with the new
vendor. Anticipated contract increases are built in to the 2025 projections. NORCOM’s initial
cloud hosting contract also renews in 2025 and anticipated increases have been incorporated in
the category’s budget.

Additional Supplies and Services

• Professional Services: The Governing Board approved a Strategic Plan Project and included
funding for a consultant contract in 2025. Initial project budget is $150,000.

• Mental Health Services: NORCOM continues to explore all opportunities to promote employee
health and wellness. The 2025 budget includes $15,000 to fund a new mental health support
services program to offer to its employees.

Fund Detail

The following is a breakdown of budgeted personnel expenses in 2025:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Operating  expenses are budgeted as follows:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Capital Projects Fund
Fund Overview and Drivers

The Capital Projects Fund supports projects typically lasting more than one year. Proposed projects are
forecasted by agency leadership based on industry trends, national, state, regional and community
focuses, participating agency requests and other driving forces. The Board must approve projects before
the commitment of any funds. Project approval can be during annual budget planning or as an
independent presentation and approval process.

Fund Detail

• Alpha-Numeric Paging System Upgrade
The Board approved NORCOM to work with Sno911 to accomplish a decreased scope of work tied to the
paging system. Instead a forklift replacement, the project now consists of upgrading and installing
equipment at each radio site necessary to keep the system operational for up to ten more years. The
project team consists of NORCOM and Sno911 staff. The estimated cost for the project is $600K. Funding
includes a 300K transfer from the Rate Stabilization account in 2022 and the rest of the funding
established in 2023. Project spending is planned in 2025.

• CAD Radio Interface and Continued CAD Solutions
NORCOM continues the work related to the Tyler Fire Migration project started in 2022. The final aspects
of the project include the Radio Interface work and the Reporting Solutions. All funding for these projects
were approved and committed in the 2022 through and 2023 budgets through transfers from the
operating fund. The project is reliant on vendor availability, which was limited after funding for the project
was approved and NORCOM completed all CAD Migration project work in at the end of 2023. The project
is anticipated to be completed in 2025.

• Continued Operations – CAD Server separation with RUBRICK
To improve NORCOM’s preparedness to address the risk of operations interruptions and disaster
recovery, the Governing Board approved funding for an upgrade to its server backup system. Total
approved in 2025 is $275,000.  Project includes two parts. First is the upgrade to the RUBRICK archiving
system. Current systems are aging and projections of a catastrophic loss of data would include significant
costs to recover lost data. The proposed upgraded system would improve current archiving practices and
mitigate risks associated with data recovery. The second part of the project is a hardware upgrade to
separate CAD services, an activity that aligns with the disaster recovery project plans.

• Call Taking Protocol Systems
As part of NORCOM’s overhaul of its quality assurance program and goal of providing continuous high
level of services to its agencies, NORCOM has planned a project that includes a review of its call taking
protocols with development of training and process implementation. A budget of $150,000 has been
approved for this project.

• Internet Provider Resiliency Preparation
NORCOM plans to take a proactive approach for anticipated improvements and plans for a project to work
with current internet service providers to facilitate these anticipated improvements. Total budget for this
project is $75,000



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Funding

The Capital Projects Fund has historically been funded with transfers of ending balances from other funds
or project approvals during the budget process. With the smoothing process, participating agencies are
levied a Capital Projects fee.

Of the total 5.2% fee increase to NORCOM’s agencies, the total fees directed to provide funding resources
to the capital project fund represent 2.8% of the fee increase, or $417,700.

Historic funding of the projects are summarized below:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document Page 21

Capital Projects Fund Spending Forecast

The projects listed are included for planning purposes.  Each project requires Board approval before any funds are committed.  These projects
may or may not be brought to the Board in future years.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Equipment Replacement & Reserve Fund
Fund Overview and Drivers

NORCOM strives to ensure that the Equipment Replacement Reserve is fully funded while minimizing
large increases in User Fees from year to year due to the acquisition or replacement of capital and
equipment items.

2025 Fund Expenses

Part of the budget process for the ERR fund includes reviewing and updating the replacement schedules
based on updated quotes, available equipment warranties and equipment status.

Significant updates made to the schedule during the 2025 budget process include:

• Servers- NORCOM anticipates the replacement of 3 server groups with a cost of approximately
$90,000 in 2025.

• Network- Firewall & Load Balancer- equipment identified for replacement in this category are
necessary for NORCOM’s network security as warranty options for current equipment have
expired and obsolete. Total estimated costs in 2025 are $37,500.

Of the overall fee increase of 5.2% to NORCOM agencies, the funding dedicated towards the Equipment
fund represents a 1% increase, with $150,000 directed towards the fund.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document Page 23

Projected ER&R Fund Forecast

In the development of the smoothing mechanism, NORCOM created the following 10-year forecast for anticipated Equipment Replacement
activities:



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Operating Expense Reserve
Fund Overview and Drivers

Per section 12h of the ILA, each budget year the Governing Board shall set the Operating Expense Reserve
at a level that ensures funds are on hand to reasonably address unforeseen operating contingencies.
NORCOM's policy is to maintain an Operating Expense Reserve at a level equal to 5% of the total
Operating Budget. To determine Operating Expense Reserve funding, the Governing Board defines the
Operating Budget as the operating fund expenses less salaries, benefits, and one-time expenses.

E-911 Escrow Fund
Fund Overview and Drivers

The King County E-911 office collects excise taxes for wireline, wireless, and VoIP services. Tax proceeds
are distributed among the twelve Public Safety Answering Point located in the county. Distributions to
PSAPs are made quarterly into an escrow account until NORCOM requests to draw out a specific amount
for authorized operations support.

These funds are used to offset the cost of operations and are transferred to the operating fund as
necessary.

Fund Forecasts

The E-911 office forecasts increases in the total Excise Tax revenue collected through 2031:

With the increase in amounts collected, the office has budgeted to increase its distributions to PSAPS.
NORCOM's budgeted distribution in 2025 are $1,500,000.



NORCOM 2025 Budget Document

Rate Stabilization Fund

Fund Overview and Drivers

The Rate Stabilization fund was created in 2012 and is funded through one-time revenues, new agency
assessments/fees, ending fund balance or other sources deemed appropriate by the Governing Board. In
2017, the Board determined that a portion of these funds could be used to offset the changes in agency
rates due to the new functional distribution formula.



RESOLUTION 218

RESOULTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF NORCOM ADOPTING THE 2025 BUDGET

WHEREAS, the legislative bodies of each Principal and Subscriber have approved their respective
allocations for NORCOM’s 2025 budget; and

WHEREAS, on July 12, 2024 the Governing Board held a public hearing on NORCOM’s 2025
budget;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of NORCOM as follows:

Section 1.2024 NORCOM Budget. The 2025 NORCOM Budget, attached hereto and incorporated as
Exhibit A, is approved for distribution to the Participating Agencies as required in the Interlocal Agreement.

Section 2. Summary of 2025 NORCOM Budget. A summary of the 2025 Budget is as follows:

Capital Equipment Operating E-911 Rate Total

Operating Projects Replacement Exp. Res. Escrow Stabilization All Funds
2025 Beginning Fund
Balance 745,060 135,573 133,324 200,751 185,517 1,114,855 2,515,080

Total 2025 Revenues 15,905,807 417,753 151,910 - 1,500,000 - 17,975,470

Transfer Activities 1,545,000 - - - (1,545,000) - -

Total 2025 Resources 18,195,867 553,326 285,234 200,751 185,517 1,114,855 20,490,550

Total 2025 Expenditures 17,850,808 500,000 158,561 - - - 18,509,369
Total Ending Fund
Resources 345,059 53,326 126,673 200,751 140,517 1,114,855 1,981,181

Section 3. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.

Passed by a majority vote of the Governing Board in an open public meeting on this 13th  of December,
2024.

Signed in authentication thereof on this 13th day of December, 2024.

Chair

Attest



Appendix A.

2025 Budget Fund Summary

Resolution 218
Adopting the 2025 Budget



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: Appointment of Deputy City Manager Call to Board Chair, and Selection and appointment of

new Governing Board Vice-Chair

Executive Summary:
The term of the current Governing Board Chair, Chief Culp, will expire after the December Governing
Board meeting. The current Governing Board Vice-Chair, Deputy City Manager Toni Call, will be
appointed as the new Chair effective January 2025.  This creates a Vice-Chair vacancy, which shall be
decided at the December 13th, 2024, meeting through a Governing Board nomination and voting
process.

Background:
The term of the Governing Board Chair, Chief Culp, will expire, and as such, the Governing Board
Vice-Chair, Deputy City Manager Toni Call, will be appointed as the new Chair. This creates a vacancy
for the vice chair position. 

Should the Governing Board wish to follow a well-established (yet informal) rotation practice, the next
Vice-Chair would be a board representative from a police agency. However, the board may deviate from
this practice if it desires to do so. 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
None 

Policy and Strategic Implications:
This process is established in Section 6(j) of the ILA. The specific timing of the transfer from Vice-Chair
to Chair and the selection of a new Vice-Chair was updated from April to January of each year (to follow
NORCOM's fiscal year more accurately). The Governing Board recommended and approved this
change. 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review, and analysis and recommends approval to select and
appoint a new Governing Board Vice-Chair for 2025.

Staff Comments:
Nothing Additional 

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: No



Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: Strategic Plan Review, Direction and Approval 

Executive Summary:
With the Governing Board's approval, funding, and direction, NORCOM seeks to develop a
comprehensive strategic plan. Staff and a subgroup of Board members have prepared a draft Request
For Proposal (RFP) for Governing Board consideration. The goal of the RFP is to identify and acquire
subject-matter expert consultant services to assist in developing a strategic plan.

After reviewing, discussing, and adopting any modifications, staff seeks the Governing Board's approval
to publish the RFP.

Background:
On April 12, 2024, the NORCOM Governing Board identified a process for best defining the scope of a
desired strategic plan. A subgroup of staff and board members across various disciplines volunteered to
develop recommendations for presentation and consideration by the full Governing Board.   On
September 13th, 2024, the proposed project scope was approved by the Governing Board.

On November 7th, 2024, the subgroup met to develop a final RFP draft for presentation to the Governing
Board.  The proposed RFP is attached to this agenda and distributed to the Governing Board for possible
review before the December 13th meeting.
 

Past Board or Other Related Actions:

Policy and Strategic Implications:

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends the Board review the
RFP draft and provide feedback or modifications as desired.  Staff seeks Board approval to publish the
finalized Request for Proposals.

Staff Comments:

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: Yes
The Finance Committee is aware of this process to include the applicable funding.  
Legal Review: No
None at this time. 
Joint Operations Board Review: No



Attachments
2024 112 10 Strategic Plan RFP PPT 
DRAFT Strategic Plan RFP 



Strategic Plan RFP
• Overview

• A Steering Team composed of NORCOM staff and stakeholders will lead the process.
• The Steering Team will provide updates and seek guidance from the NORCOM

Governing Board throughout the project.
• The Governing Board will have final decision-making authority regarding the

consultant’s work and deliverables.
• Request

• Approval to publish RFP
• Next Steps

• The Steering Team will review proposals
• Top candidates may be invited for interviews to supplement submissions
• The Steering Team will return to the Governing Board to present their evaluation

and recommend a preferred vendor for final approval



Scope of Work



Evaluation Criteria

• Budget (10%): Detailed, cost-effective proposal aligned with project objectives.

• Understanding of Needs (25%); Clear articulation of goals, challenges, and
unique project requirements.

• Project Approach (25%): Feasible, creative strategies with defined steps and
timelines.

• Data Collection Plan (25%): Comprehensive strategy for collecting and analyzing
actionable data.

• Experience (15%): Proven success in similar projects; capable team with relevant
qualification.



DRAFT

REQUEST FOR
PROPOSALS

–STRATEGIC PLAN
For North East King County Regional Public Safety Communications

Agency

RFP #
Release date: Click

or tap to enter a
date.

Date Due:



Contents
Introduction..................................................................................................................................................2

Project Description....................................................................................................................................... 2

Scope of Work.......................................................................................................................................... 2

Term............................................................................................................................................................. 3

Timeline.................................................................................................................................................... 3

Proposal Due................................................................................................................................................ 3

Proposal Submittal Procedures................................................................................................................ 3

Response Requirement and Format.........................................................................................................4

Selection and Award.....................................................................................................................................5

Evaluation Criteria.................................................................................................................................... 5

Questions and Inquiries............................................................................................................................5

Contact......................................................................................................................................................... 6

Appendix of Attachments.............................................................................................................................6

A. Scope of Work.................................................................................................................................. 6

B. Sample Agreement........................................................................................................................... 7

C. Insurance.......................................................................................................................................... 8

Page 1 of 9



Introduction
North East King County Regional Public Safety Communications Agency (NORCOM), a Washington
Interlocal governmental agency, is requesting proposals for Strategic Plan development consulting
services. NORCOM’s needs are outlined in the following Request for Proposal (RFP).

NORCOM, a 9-1-1 Public Safety Answering Point and Dispatch Center located in Bellevue, Washington,
was founded in 2007 by an Interlocal agreement.  NORCOM currently serves 14 Fire Agencies and 8 Law
Enforcement Agencies. NORCOM handles emergency, fire, police, and medical calls and provides dispatch
services for a service area of approximately 662 square miles of North King County. NORCOM requires that
no person or entity shall, on the grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status,
political affiliation, sexual orientation, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity. NORCOM further assures that every effort will be made to ensure non-
discrimination in all its programs and activities, whether those programs are federally funded or not.

Project Description
NORCOM is interested in partnering with a consultant to prepare a Strategic Plan and needs assessment.
The project is anticipated to be an inclusive and collaborative process that provides a picture of how
NORCOM fits within the state of 911 in Washington State and develop plans to address expansion related
to projected population growth, evolving services (e.g., mental health), and changing demands (e.g.,
customer expectations of service and IT support services).

The project will be guided by a Strategic Plan Steering Team that includes NORCOM staff from various
departments, and representatives of NORCOM stakeholders. Communications and correspondence will be
conducted in various methods including in-person meetings, emails, or virtual meetings. These participants
will work closely with the consultant team throughout the process and ensure the momentum of the
Strategic Plan Project.
Scope of Work
Tasks of this project include:

• Environmental scan of the state of 911 in Washington
• Identification of NORCOM customers (current and future)
• Assess current organizational structure and operations
• Identify the gaps in current services or capabilities
• Develop a roadmap for NORCOM future services
• SWOT analysis
• Analysis of infrastructure needs for alignment with current and future service delivery goals and

expectations
• Evaluate the current financial model for its alignment with the agency’s needs and goals
• Data analysis to include but not limited to

o Call volume and dispatched calls for service
o Workload drivers
o Staffing levels
o Retention/attrition drivers
o Population projections

Page2 of 9



o Satisfaction with NORCOM’s service

Attachment A has a detailed list of tasks and deliverables for the scope of project.

The NORCOM Governing Board has authorized staff to proceed with this RFP.

Term
The contract will be from approximately Click here to enter a date to Click here to enter a date.. The
contract resulting from this RFP shall remain in effect until completion and a final payment of the services
described in the Contract unless terminated earlier per NORCOM’s contractual policies. NORCOM
reserves the right to terminate this Contract at any time upon 30 days written notice to the consultant.

Timeline
Milestone Date
RFP Announced Click here to enter a date.
Deadline to Submit RFP Click here to enter a date.
Evaluations of Proposals Click here to enter a date.
Interviews Click here to enter a date.
Consultant Selected Click here to enter a date.
Execution of Contract Click here to enter a date.
Project Kickoff Click here to enter a date.

Proposal Due
Proposals are due to NORCOM’s Finance Manager no later than Click or tap to enter a time & date at
Click here to enter text.

Late proposals will not be considered for award of contract.

NORCOM reserves the right to reopen the solicitation if there are no proposals acceptable to NORCOM
due to this solicitation. Any changes or amendments to this solicitation will be immediately posted to the
NORCOM’s website, and any previous submitter(s) will be allowed to rescind and resubmit their
application(s).

Proposal Submittal Procedures
We encourage that the responses be submitted by email. Emailed responses should include "NORCOM
Strategic Plan" in the subject line and be addressed to: Click here to enter email address. (Emailed
responses must be in PDF format and cannot exceed 20MB). As an alternate to email, responses can be
shared through a cloud service provider of the respondent’s choice or mailed or delivered to:

NORCOM
Attn: Click here to enter Contact Name. – Strategic Plan
PO BOX 50911
Bellevue, WA 98015

Page 3 of 9



The respondent is responsible for covering all expenses incurred in creating a response to this RFP, and
NORCOM is not liable for any costs. The respondent must bear all costs of preparing and presenting the
written and oral submissions. Any response and accompanying documentation submitted will become the
property of NORCOM and will not be returned. Responders can withdraw their proposals before the listed
close date, provided they give a written notification to the designated NORCOM agent(s).

Submissions must include all necessary information and meet the requirements outlined in this RFP. A
committee will assess all proposals submitted.  NORCOM may request additional information or
clarification from responding firms during the evaluation process.

Response Requirement and Format
Proposals should be prepared in a straightforward, concise manner. Emphasis should be on accuracy,
completeness, and clarity of content. All parts, pages, figures, and tables should be numbered and
clearly labeled.

Responses to this RFP must include the following:

• Executive Summary: Introduce your agency and showcase your understanding of the proposal
and why you are interested in partnering with NORCOM. This section should also outline your
approach, understanding, and strategy for completing the work.

• Prior Experience: provide a detailed summary of your prior experience in public safety
communications.  This summary should include, but not be limited to:

o Scope of experience:  describe specific projects or contracts completed within the
public safety communications sector (e.g., 911 call centers, dispatch centers or related
services.)

o Timeframe:  indicate the duration of the experience, specifying start and end dates for
relevant projects.

o Relevance:  Explain how the previous work aligns with the scope of services requested
in this RFP.

o Demonstrated Outcomes:  highlight measurable achievements or improvements
resulting from your work in public safety communications.

• A work plan for completing the scope of work outlined in Appendix A
o Timeline for each task
o Brief description of tasks including anticipated stakeholders to involve and anticipated

level of work by NORCOM staff
o Ability of consultant to complete the project in view of dedicated staff, resources, and

commitments to other projects.
• Project budget: provide a detailed budget that breaks down cost by phase or deliverable. If any

expenses need to be included in your proposal, please list them as separate line items and indicate
the total anticipated costs and nature of the expenses (ex. Supplies, lodging, meals, etc.)

• References- Please include a list of references (with contact name and telephone number) of at
least three (3) projects completed within the last three years

Additionally, Consultants must make the proposals in the official name
of the firm or individual under which business is conducted (showing

Page 4 of 9

a

Page 4 of 9



Consultants must make the proposals in the official name of the firm or
individual under which business is conducted (showing official business

ddress) and must be signed by a person duly authorized to legally bind the person, partnership, company,
or corporation submitting the proposal. A corporation must indicate the place and date of incorporation.

Selection and Award
All interested parties are requested to provide a response containing all required elements herein to
NORCOM by the deadline given. A selection committee will review and evaluate all proposals, with the
intention of selecting a consultant who provides a proposal that, in the opinion of NORCOM, provides the
best value (receives the highest score, as determined by the evaluation criteria listed below). If the
selection committee so chooses, respondents may be invited for an interview to supplement their
submission.

Evaluation Criteria
Criteria Weight
Budget 10%
Understanding of needs 25%
Project approach 25%
Plan to collect quantitative data and
qualitative data

25%

Experience 15%

Budget (10%) – provide a detailed budget proposal that justifies the proposed expenditures and
demonstrate cost-effectiveness while meeting the project’s objectives.

Understanding of Needs (25%) - demonstrate a thorough understanding of the project’s goals,
challenges, and specific requirements.  Your proposal should articulate the project’s purpose and
objectives clearly, highlighting any insights into its unique aspects.

Project Approach (25%) - describe your methodology and overall approach to successfully executing the
project.  This should include clear, feasible, and creative strategies to achieve the desired outcomes, as
well as an outline of key steps and timelines.

Plan to Collect Quantitative and Qualitative Data (25%) - present a detailed plan for collecting and
analyzing both quantitative and qualitative data.  Include information about the tools, methods, and
strategies you will use, ensuring they are rigorous, appropriate, and capable of producing actionable
insights.

Experience (15%) - highlight your team’s relevant experience and qualifications.  Provide examples of
similar projects completed successfully, emphasizing your organization’s capability to deliver results
within the proposed timeline and scope.

Questions and Inquiries
Please direct any questions concerning this RFP or NORCOM’s requirements to the NORCOM agent(s)
listed below. No other NORCOM official or employee is empowered to speak for NORCOM with respect

Page 5 of 9



to this request. Information obtained from any other source shall not be binding and may disqualify your
response.

Contact
Bill Hamilton

Executive Director

Email: bhamilton@norcom.org

Phone: 425-577-5586

Page 6 of 9



Appendix of Attachments
A. Scope of Work

The following have been prepared as a detailed list of tasks and deliverables for the scope of the project

Phase 1: Project Launch Phase 2: Information Gathering Phase 3: Strategic Plan
Development

Phase 4: Plan Adoption

Key Phase Milestones
1. Steering Committee

Group Workshop
2. Governing Board

presentation

1. Surveys/Interviews/Focus
Groups of selected
stakeholders and interest
groups

2. Regular meetings with
Steering Committee

1. Regular meetings
with Steering
Committee

2. Stakeholder
engagement and
review

1. Governing Board
presentation

2. Stakeholder
presentations

Key Phase Deliverables
1. Draft and final

workplan and
engagement
strategy

2. Phase 2 and 3
schedule

1. SWOT Analysis
2. Survey/Interview/Focus

Group findings
3. Strategic plan

recommendations

1. Draft Strategic Plan
2. Draft Implementation

Plan
3. Draft Monitoring Plan

1. Final Strategic Plan
2. Final Implementation

Plan
3. Final Monitoring Plan

Page 7 of 9



B. Sample Agreement
Boilerplate contract example provided here

Page 8 of 9



C. Insurance
The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Contract insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. The
cost of such insurance shall be paid by the Contractor. Insurance shall meet or exceed the following unless
otherwise approved by NORCOM.

A. Minimum Insurance:

• Commercial General Liability coverage with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence/
$2,000,000 annual aggregate.

• Business Automobile Liability Coverage with limits not less than $1,000,000 per accident for any
auto.

• Stop Gap/Employer's Liability coverage with limits not less than $1,000,000 per accident/disease.
• Technology Errors and Omissions (E&O) shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 per

claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.
• Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance Laws of the State of

Washington.

B. Self-Insured Retentions:

Self-insured retentions must be declared to NORCOM in writing.

C. Other Provisions
1. Commercial General Liability policies must be endorsed to:
a) include NORCOM, its officials, employees and volunteers as additional insureds,
b) Provide that such insurance shall be primary as respects any insurance or self-insurance

maintained by NORCOM.
2. Contractor or its Insurance Agent/Broker shall notify NORCOM of any cancellation, or reduction

in coverage or limits, of any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurer's notification to
that effect.

D. Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance shall be placed with Insurers with an AM Best rating of A-minus or higher.

E. Verification of Coverage:

Contractor shall furnish NORCOM with certificates of insurance required by this clause. The certificates
are to be received and approved by NORCOM before work commences. NORCOM reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.

Page 9 of 9



MEMORANDUM
  
To: Governing Board
From: Bill Hamilton, Executive Director
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: December IT & Operations Newsletters 

Executive Summary:
The IT & Operations Newsletters contain updates and other important topics. The Newsletters
are presented to the Board for review, input, and questions.

Background:
The Newsletters are routinely provided to the Board.

Past Board or Other Related Actions:
N/A 

Policy and Strategic Implications:
N/A 

NORCOM Staff Recommendation:
NORCOM Staff has conducted a thorough review and analysis and recommends the Board review the
updates and offer input or questions as desired.

Staff Comments:
N/A 

Options

Risks

Finance Committee Review: No

Legal Review: No

Joint Operations Board Review: No

Attachments
202412 IT & Operations Newsletters 



Radio
PSERN to CAD Interface
Kick-off meeting was held in late October. We are waiting for 
equipment receipt to begin installation.

Alpha-Numeric Paging
Installations of equipment at various sites continues. 

Telephone Systems
911 Platform Replacement
Go-live completed on November 13, 2024 without any major 
issues.

Project, Systems and Programs 
911 Console Replacement

911 
Operations 
to move 
back on 
November 
13 in a 
smooth 
transition.

Multi-factor 
authentication in dispatch
To maintain compliance with new CJIS requirements our 
dispatch staff must use multi-factors to log into the dispatch 
computers. A few vendors using different methods are being 
tested including a proximity card, fingerprint reader, and 
physical token. 

Security Specialist Position
2nd round interviews are being scheduled.  NORCOM's goal is 
to have the selected candidate's start date as close to Jan 1, 
2025 as possible.

IT Service Desk
Surveys
Each requester that has a ticket closed receives a link to a four-
question survey.  Each question is rated on a three-choice
scale, with an opportunity to share comments.

“Appreciate Khai having to run this down… and 
sticking with it until it got fixed.” 
“Norcom was hesitant to do the fix they thought 
would work best but it was also a fair amount of work 
on Normcom's [sic] side vs trying a few easy things 
on out [sic] side.” 

Last Month: 8 surveys were returned (32 ratings)
Better than expected – 24
As expected – 7
Less than expected - 1

Information Technology Updates
From:  Katy Myers, DDofA December 2024 

New fire console near completion

0

5

10

15

20

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Nov
'23

Dec
'23

Jan '24 Feb
'24

Mar
'24

Apr
'24

May
'24

June
'24

Jul '24 Aug
'24

Sep
'24

Oct
'24

Nov
'24

IT Service Desk

Inbound Completed Overdue



Operations Updates
From:  Roky Louie, Deputy Director of Operations 

December 2024

Reduced Resource Responses
NORCOM has policy in place to match responsiveness to altered levels of activity. This allows the agency to 
better handle emergency activity during events ranging from heavy fireworks activity on the Fourth of July to 
wind storms, snow, cold snaps, and other events. These policies can be initiated separately, or in concert to 
provide a specific, tailored response to a situation.
Events Queue
NORCOM has the ability to send specific types of calls to a specific phone queue, freeing up other call takers 
to take other calls. This policy is known as the Events Queue. For instance, on the Fourth of July, the Events 
Queue is used to send all fireworks complaints to one call taker. This process ensures that other call takers 
remain available to handle crimes in progress or life-threatening medical emergencies. 
Resource Emergency
Fire and medical responses are selected through the use of predetermined response plans. Special response 
plans exist for periods of high activity. For instance, in normal activity a particular fire department may have 
two or more fire units respond to an incident.  During a significant weather event, it is common to receive a 
large amount of lower priority responses which could exhaust available resources.  In Resource Emergency, 
lower priority incidents are sent to individual agencies to triage and respond as they are able.  This allows 
better management of resources keeping units available for higher priority more critical life-saving events.
Reduced Response – Fire
Similar to Resource Emergency, while in a Reduced Response, special response plans are used to alter the 
quantity of resources sent.  All incidents will have units dispatched to them, however with the reduction in 
the quantity of units, it helps maintain resources available for higher priority more critical events.
Reduced Response – Police
This type of altered response level is activated when a police agency declares that weather conditions (or 
similar emergencies - i.e., a severe staffing shortage, heavy wind, rainstorm, flooding, as well as snowstorms, 
or other high-priority incidents.) become dangerous enough to enact reduced responses for their agency. 
Each agency has a modified version of reducing normal responses. This can include altering responses like
how many officers respond to calls, altered or no responses for traffic collisions with no injuries, blocking 
vehicles, and non-emergency routine requests. Police agency supervisors authorize the use of reduced 
response plans.  
Level 1 Resource Emergency – NORCOM & Police 
In the event of a situation that significantly reduces NORCOM’s ability to sustain normal service delivery for 
an extended period, NORCOM will alert participating police agencies that we are in a “Level 1” Resource 
Emergency. This level of notification would be authorized by the NORCOM Executive Director, Deputy 
Directors, or the on-duty NORCOM Supervisor. Agencies would be advised via radio channels and paging 
groups that this procedure has been activated. All priority emergencies would continue to be dispatched via 
CAD and on radio channels. Non-emergency call would be held until the conclusion of the declared 
emergency. All radio traffic, CAD chat functions, and emails will be limited to necessary communication during 
this event. Agencies are encouraged to limit non-urgent officer-initiated contacts, traffic stops, follow up calls, 
etc. until the conclusion of the declared emergency. 


